

PLENARY MEETING

Document 10-E 14 October 2021 Original: Chinese

# Note by the Secretary-General

CANDIDACY FOR THE POST OF MEMBER OF THE RADIO REGULATIONS BOARD (RRB)

Further to the information published in Document 3, I have the pleasure in transmitting to the Conference, in annex, the candidacy of:

## Mr Jianjun CHENG (People's Republic of China)

for the post of member of the Radio Regulations Board.

Houlin ZHAO Secretary-General

Annex: 1

<u>www.itu.int/plenipotentiary/</u>

#### 2 PP22/10-E

# MINISTRY OF INDUSTRY AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

# **PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA**

13 West Chang'an Ave., Beijing 100804, China

July 14, 2021

To: Mr. Houlin ZHAO Secretary-General of the International Telecommunication Union Geneva, Switzerland

Dear Mr. Secretary-General,

I have the honour to inform you that China will present its candidature for the election to the next Council of the International Telecommunication Union (ITU) at the ITU Plenipotentiary Conference in 2022. China has the honour to nominate Mr. Jianjun CHENG for a seat on the Radio Regulations Board (RRB) of the International Telecommunication Union.

Mr. Jianjun CHENG has extensive experience in the field of radiocommunications, especially in spectrum management and international coordination. He is familiar with the Radio Regulations and the Rules of Procedure of the International Telecommunication Union. He has participated in many World Radiocommunication Conferences, Radiocommunication Assemblies and ITU-R Study Group meetings. He has solid professional competence, broad international vision and considerable experience in international cooperation. I am confident that if elected, Mr. Jianjun CHENG will contribute to the rational and economic use of, and equitable access to, the radio-frequency spectrum resources by all countries.

As a Member State of the ITU Council, China has long participated actively in the work of ITU and is committed to fulfilling the purposes of the Union. We are willing to work with all the Member States to provide continuous support to the work of the Union, jointly promoting the coordinated and harmonized development of the global information and communication technology industry, while making positive contribution to building a community with a shared future for mankind.

Please accept, Sir, the assurance of my highest consideration.

AZK

Minister of Industry and Information Technology of the People's Republic of China

Attachment: Curriculum Vitae of Mr. Jianjun CHENG

#### З РР22/10-Е

# **Curriculum Vitae of Jianjun CHENG**

Candidate of the People's Republic of China for the post of Member of the Radio Regulations Board of the International Telecommunication Union (Region E)



### PERSONAL INFORMATION

Date of birth: April 4, 1971

Current Position: Director General of the State Radio Monitoring Center, China

Nationality: Chinese

Languages: Chinese (Mother tongue), English

#### **EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND**

- 1997 Master of Science, Radio Technology. Department of Electronics Engineering, Tianjin University
- 1993 Bachelor of Science, Radio Technology. Department of Electronics Engineering, Tianjin University

## **PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE**

2021-Present	Director General, State Radio Monitoring Center, China
2019-2021	Director General, Communications Regulatory Bureau of Fujian Province, China
2017-2019	Director General, Communications Regulatory Bureau of Heilongjiang Province, China
2015-2017	Deputy Director General, Department of International Cooperation, Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, China
2013-2015	Deputy Director General, Bureau of Radio Regulation, Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, China
2005-2013	Director of Space Service Division and later Supervision and Inspection Division, Bureau of Radio Regulation, Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, China
2002-2005	Second Secretary and later First Secretary, Chinese Embassy in the UK

- 1998-2002 Senior Staff of Space Service Division, Bureau of Radio Regulation, Ministry of Information Industry, China
- 1997-1998 Engineer, State Radio Monitoring Center, China

# INTERNATIONAL EXPERIENCE

Mr. Jianjun CHENG has extensive experience in the field of radiocommunications, especially in spectrum management and international coordination. He is familiar with the Radio Regulations and Rules of Procedure of the International Telecommunication Union. He has participated in several World Radiocommunication Conferences, Radiocommunication Assemblies and ITU-R Study Group meetings. He has solid professional competence, broad international vision and considerable experience in international cooperation.

Since 1998, he has participated in WRC-2000, WRC-07, WRC-12, PP-14 and other conferences of ITU as a member of the Chinese delegation and was responsible for preparations for conferences, coordination of satellite and space service matters as well as development of China's contributions. In addition, he has been deeply involved in the discussions of rules, procedures and technologies at ITU-R Study Group meetings such as SG4 and SG7. He drafted a number of contributions submitted to the Radio Regulations Board on the review of the Rules of Procedure.

# 2015-2021

• He chaired and participated in intergovernmental dialogues and international industrial cooperation meetings in the field of industry and information technology on numerous occasions. He conducted extensive exchanges with the competent industrial and information technology counterparts of the European Union, Germany, France, Russia, the United States, etc., including the "5G+ Industrial Internet for World Development Forum" of Digital China Summit editions 2020 and 2021, the "China-Europe Industry 4.0 International Cooperation Forum" of the World Conference on Computational Intelligence in 2017, the Fifth BRICS Communications Ministers Meeting in 2019 etc.

# 2000-2015

- As head of the Chinese delegation, he participated in many ITU-R Study Group, Working Party and AWG meetings on satellite and space services. He also led Chinese delegations to satellite coordination meetings with other administrations.
- He participated in PP-14 and was responsible for the coordination of radiocommunication matters within the Chinese delegation.
- Chairman of APG Working Group IV on WRC-12.
- He participated in WRC-12 and served as the coordinator of the Chinese delegation for agenda items on satellite and space services.
- He participated in WRC-07 and served as the coordinator of the Chinese delegation for agenda items on satellite and space services.
- He participated in WRC-2000 and served as the coordinator of the Chinese delegation for agenda items on satellite and space services.

## 1998-1999

• He participated in Expert Group meetings on frequency re-planning of broadcastingsatellite service in Regions 1 and 3.

### COMMITMENTS

China has a long history of active participation in various activities of the International Telecommunication Union and has provided strong support to the Union in fulfilling its mandate and mission. With the rapid evolution of space and terrestrial radiocommunication services, China will continue to support the Radiocommunication Bureau of ITU in fulfilling its mandate of ensuring the equitable, reasonable, economic and effective use of radio frequency and satellite orbit resources, while at the same time assisting the Radio Regulations Board in playing its important role in applying provisions of the Radio Regulations, coordinating and solving radio frequency interference cases.

Mr. CHENG has nearly 20 years of experience in the coordination and management of radio frequency and satellite orbit resources. He has been heavily involved in various activities of the International Telecommunication Union and the Asia-Pacific Telecommunity and he is familiar with ITU rules and procedures. For many years, he had been responsible for the international coordination of China's satellite frequencies and orbits. He had maintained long term exchange and cooperation with his counterparts in many countries (in particular in the Asia-Pacific region). His insights into radiocommunication services and geographical-environment of Asia-Pacific countries can benefit the interests of the Asia-Pacific region as a whole. He has solid professional expertise and extensive experience in radio spectrum engineering and interference monitoring. He had been working on an international cooperation related post for more than 5 years and another 4 years in a provincial-level government agency. He possesses good communication skills and a spirit of cooperation. The above-mentioned professional experience led him to realize the importance of economic and efficient development and utilization of satellite frequency and orbit resources, and a full appreciation of the concerns of member states in accessing satellite frequency and orbit resources.

If elected as a member of the Radio Regulations Board, Mr. Jianjun CHENG will strictly follow the Constitution, the Convention, the Radio Regulations of the International Telecommunication Union and all applicable resolutions and decisions adopted by previous World Radiocommunication Conferences, making every effort to apply his professional knowledge and practical experience in fulfilling the duties and missions of a Board member. He will facilitate the objective application of the Radio Regulations and the Rules of Procedure while making sure that concerns and suggestions of member states are heard and taken into account properly so that the Radio Regulations Board can make fair and transparent decisions.